
 
 

THE CITY OF SMYRNA 

2800 KING STREET 

SMYRNA, GEORGIA 30080 

 

Monday, October 11, 2021 

 

RFP  22-014 Residential and Commercial Solid Waste & Recycling Collection Services 

 

PROPOSAL DUE DATE:  October 27, 2021 – 10:00 AM   

 

 

ADDENDUM 2 

The contents of this Addendum are fully incorporated into the original RFP. 

 

➢ Update to number of commercial customers – 839 

 

1.  All materials collected are required to go to a City approved dump site: 

a. What are the disposal sites currently in use?  Current disposal sites for Residential 

- GFL Smyrna Transfer station 4696 South Cobb Drive, Recycle - WestRock 

Recycling 1775 County Services Parkway. 

 

b. What are the tonnage rates at those disposal facilities? 

This information will not be provided per O.C.G.A 50-18-72(a)(K)(10). 

 

c. Where are Hefty Energy Bags processed?  WestRock Recycling 

 

d. What are the current annual tonnages for MSW and Recycle collected in the City? 
6/30/20 thru 7/1/21 - Residential MSW - 14,409.62 tons. Recycling - 2,295.92 tons. 
 

2.  Who is the current provider and what is the current rate?   

The current provider for Commercial solid waste is Waste Management (formerly 

Advanced Disposal).   

Pursuant to Georgia O.C.G.A 50-18-72(a)(K)(10), the City is not required to produce 

information related to pending bids to include cost estimates until final award.  

 

3.  What amount is the desired franchise fee included in the direct bill option?   

The City is asking for each provider’s best proposal option. 

 



4.  What are the required amounts for Bid Bond and Performance Bond?  

 

• Bid Guarantee     

Bid Bond: 

All proposals shall be accompanied by a bid bond in the amount of no less than five 

percent (5%). The bid bond may be in the form of a cashiers’ check, certified check, 

money order, or a bond from a bonding company licensed to do business within the 

State of Georgia.  Bonds will be made payable to the City of Smyrna.  The bid bond 

should be good for 12 months following the due date for this RFP. 

 

 

Performance Bond 

The Contractor shall furnish a corporate surety bond as security for the performance of 

the service contract.  Said surety bond shall be in the amount of one hundred percent 

(100%) of the annual gross revenue of the Contractor under the service contract. 

 

The Contractor shall pay the premium for the performance bond.  A certificate from 

the surety showing that the bond premiums are paid in full shall accompany the bond.  

The surety on the bond shall be a duly authorized corporate surety company approved 

to do business in the State of Georgia. 

 

5.  Can the City provide the service frequency breakdown of the Commercial small Containers 

by Container size? 

 
Commercial 1x 

Week 
2x 
Week 

3x 
Week 

4x 
Week 

5x 
Week 

6x 
Week 

Total RFP Total 

2 Yard 116 1 2 0 0 0 119 133 

4 Yard 105 16 7 1 1 1 131 141 

6 Yard 87 33 12 3 2 3 140 154 

8 Yard 89 70 48 17 16 31 271 363 

8 Yard 
Compactor 

2  1  1  4  

 

 
Front Load 
Recycle 

1x Week 2x Week 3x Week 4x Week 5x Week 6x Week 

4 Yard  1     

6 Yard   1    

8 Yard 25 18 9 2  1 

 
 
 
 



Hillsdale Condos:  450 units 
Picked up twice weekly, cans/carts provided by residents. 
 

Cans/Carts 450 

96 Gal Recycle 450 

 

6.  For the Roll off Containers and Compactors, could the City please provide the frequency of 

scheduled service by container size and for the on call could you provide the total estimated 

hauls for the month?   

 

Amounts per last month’s invoice: 
 

Roll-Off 

Type Quantity Hauls 

10 YD Recycle 1 4 

20 YD 8 5 

30 YD 30 71 

40 YD 22 222 
 

Compactor 

Type Quantity 

30 YD 1 

34 YD 4 

40 YD 20 

42 YD 1 
 

Hauls:  22 

7.  Could the City provide, in its entirety, the August 2021 Commercial and Roll off invoice 

presented to the City of Smyrna by the current hauler?  

Pursuant to Georgia O.C.G.A 50-18-72(a)(K)(10), the City is not required to produce 

information related to pending bids to include cost estimates until final award.  

Per Official Code of Georgia Annotated –  

OCGA 50-18-72 (K) (10)  

(a) Public disclosure shall not be required for records that are: 

(K) Is a governmental official, entity, or agency, or an authorized agent thereof, requesting 

reports for the purpose of carrying out governmental functions or legitimate governmental duties; 



(10) Pending, rejected, or deferred sealed bids or sealed proposals and detailed cost estimates 

related thereto until such time as the final award of the contract is made, the project is terminated 

or abandoned, or the agency in possession of the records takes a public vote regarding the sealed 

bid or sealed proposal, whichever comes first. 

 

8.  Did I overlook the start date for the RFP? I see the proposal needs to be valid for 120 days, 

does that indicate a start date of January 2022?  The commercial solid waste contract ends 

February 2022.  We anticipate a start date of March 1, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Please complete and submit the Acknowledgements below: 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT of ADDENDA 

RFP 22-014 Residential and Commercial Solid Waste & Recycling Collection Services 

 

______ We acknowledge receipt of Addendum 2.  

  

________________________________ 

      Company Name  

 

________________________________ 

      Signature  

      _________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

      _________________________________ 

      Title 

 

      Date _____________________________ 

 
 


